

# ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

# I. Name and Purpose

The name of this organization is The Exiles. All legal documents shall be maintained under this name.

The Exiles is a 501(c)3 non-profit corporation legally established in San Francisco, California in March 1997, on behalf of its future members and granted 501(c)3 non-profit status in September 2006. All assets accumulated or obligations incurred in the name of The Exiles, including its name, logo and official means of communication, are and remain wholly under its control.

The Exiles is an educational group for women and all those whose gender self-identification is other than male, who have a positive personal interest in BDSM The group will provide educational events where those people with all levels of experience will have a safe place to meet, explore and share information about safety, play techniques and resources, and connect with the leather community locally and nationally.

The official means of communication for The Exiles shall include:

by mail at a PO Box owned by the Exiles.

by voice mail at a phone number owned by the Exiles.

by web at www.theexiles.org

by e-mail at info@theexiles.org

by newsletter, The Lunatic Fringe

by appropriate social media identified as representing the Exiles

Only members authorized to communicate on behalf of the Exiles shall do so.

The Exiles shall generally hold at least two regularly scheduled events each month, to include:

- an educational program on a topic of interest to its members, open to anyone over 18 whose gender self-identification is other than male, and, when held in a public place, publicized to maximize outreach;
- a business meeting, open to members only, at which all officers shall report and all members are encouraged to participate in the running of the organization. All members are urged to participate in discussions, and, after attending two of the previous four meetings, may make motions and vote.

The December business meeting may be canceled by majority vote at the October or November meeting.

# II. Membership

## A. ELIGIBILITY

Membership in The Exiles is open to all women and those whose gender self-identification is other than male, who are over 18 years of age, and who have a personal and positive interest in BDSM We ask that you respect that this is a women's space. Legal verification of age will be required.

Members must agree to abide by these Articles and Policies.

Safety, confidentiality and consensuality are required from and offered to all members. All those wishing to join The Exiles must attend an Orientation at which these obligations will be explained, or have attended such an Orientation via a reciprocal organization. However, the group cannot guarantee that each member will behave responsibly; therefore membership in The Exiles does not constitute an endorsement by the organization of a person or their character.

#### **B. TYPES**

There shall be two categories of membership, Members and Associates.

Members: Persons who meet the eligibility requirements, attend an Exiles-sponsored Orientation, sign the Waiver and Liability Release with their legal names and pay annual dues shall become Members. They shall have the right to vote for and become officers, receive The Lunatic Fringe, attend and participate in the business meetings of the group, receive a membership card and use it to attend Exiles functions at the member fee, participate in other groups through reciprocal agreements, and other rights and privileges that may be conferred by these Articles and Policies.

Any eligible person wishing to join the Exiles may provide proof of membership in a reciprocal organization in lieu of attending the Exiles Orientation.

Associates: Persons who meet the eligibility requirements, sign the Waiver and Liability Release with their legal names, pay annual dues and live outside the San Francisco Bay area (outside of Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, Sacramento, San Francisco, San Mateo, Santa Clara, Santa Cruz, Solano and Sonoma counties) may choose to become Associates. They shall have the right to receive The Lunatic Fringe as a way of maintaining contact with the leather community and be admitted to Exiles events at member rates. There is no requirement to attend an orientation, and Associates do not receive a membership card.

### C. DUES

The membership year shall run from July 1 through June 30 of the following year.

Dues shall be paid in June by renewing members and associates, and prorated on a bi- monthly basis throughout the remainder of the year.

There are four types of dues:

- 1. Individual Membership- one person
- 2. Household Membership two or more members residing at the same address.
- 3. Supporting Membership a person or household who pay(s) an additional up-front fee, above and beyond the Individual or Household rate, and are then entitled to attend all regular monthly programs during that membership year (July 1 through June 30) at no additional cost. (Does not apply to Hardship members.)
- 4. Hardship Membership an Individual member experiencing self-defined financial difficulty. Does not apply to Household membership.
- 5. Associate as defined in Section II(B) of the Articles.

Each member will receive their own membership card. Each member is entitled to receive the newsletter electronically. Alternative delivery of the newsletter, for example by paper mail, may be offered. Each type of membership is entitled to receive one paper newsletter. This means that members paying the Household rate are eligible to receive one paper newsletter for the Household.

The fee schedule for dues shall be reviewed on a yearly basis at the May regularly scheduled business meeting. The fee schedule may be adjusted at that business meeting by a majority vote. However, in no event shall the fee schedule be increased by more than 20% in any given calendar year.

It is the member's responsibility to provide current address information. Changes may be sent to the post office box or by email or left on the voice mail, in each case directed to the Membership Officer.

## D. REVOKING MEMBERSHIP

Membership may be revoked for cause. Cause includes but is not limited to:

- Violation of confidentiality revealing the identity, name, address or phone number of a member to a non-member; revealing confidential information about a member to anyone; using information provided to the organization by a member for other than official business.
- Disruptiveness behavior that consistently impairs the orderly functioning of the organization at a business meeting or any Exiles event; behavior that interferes with the enjoyment of an event by others present.
- Unsafe behavior behavior that presents a threat to the safety or well-being of others.
- Unauthorized representation or misrepresentation No one shall speak for The Exiles or act as an official representative unless they hold the appropriate office or have been expressly authorized to do so.
- Theft or misappropriation of Exiles resources.
- Failure to abide by these Articles and Policies unwillingness to adhere to the principles and procedures of this
  organization.

Any member may present a possible cause of revocation in writing to the Steering Committee. At a special meeting called with fourteen days notice and attended only by the Steering Committee, the parties, and any witnesses either party may bring, both members will be heard. The Steering Committee will ask questions and discuss the facts presented. Witnesses will be heard and questioned. At the end of discussion, both parties involved shall leave. All Steering Committee members who have heard the discussion are eligible to vote. A quorum of two thirds of the Steering Committee must be present for a valid vote to occur, and two thirds of them must vote to revoke.

If a Steering Committee member is one of the parties involved, they will not vote, nor be present when the vote is taken.

If a person who is being considered for membership revocation refuses to participate in the special meeting or respond to the allegations being brought against them, then the Steering Committee shall vote based on the facts and testimony it has at its disposal.

A person whose membership has been revoked shall not be admitted as a guest to any Exiles function nor rejoin the Exiles as a member for a period of 3 years from the date of the revocation. After 3 years the person may apply to have the ban lifted, by contacting the co-coordinators and, through them, make arrangements to attend a business meeting with their request.

Behavior described in Paragraph D above may also result in immediate expulsion from any Exiles event by any two elected or appointed officers who witness such behavior.

### E. DENYING MEMBERSHIP

A request for membership may be denied by a majority vote of the Steering Committee. Any member who is concerned about the appropriateness of a potential new member may request the Steering Committee in writing to review the application.

## III. Officers

The Exiles shall elect two coordinators for alternating two-year terms, so that each year one coordinator ends their term while the other continues for one more year. The term runs from April 1 through March 31. The Exiles shall elect three additional officers, Membership Officer, Treasurer, and Recorder, each for a one-year term running from April 1 through March 31, and shall have seven appointed officers, Newsletter Editor, PR Officer, Orientation Officer, Doorkeeper, Sergeant-at-Arms, Web Site Manager, and Volunteer Coordinator, each for a one-year term running from May 1 through April 30. Together, all of these officers shall make up the Steering Committee.

## A. QUALIFICATIONS

An Exiles member who has been a member for at least a year, and who has attended a minimum of 3 of the last 6 regular business meetings is eligible to be nominated for the Coordinator position. An Exiles member who has attended a minimum of 3 of the last 6 regular business meetings is eligible to be nominated for the positions of Membership Officer or Treasurer. Anyone who has been an Exiles member for one year, or has qualified to become a voting member at business meetings, is eligible to be nominated for or to be appointed to any position other than Coordinator, Membership Officer, or Treasurer.

3

## **B. DUTIES**

An officer is required to attend at least 6 of the regularly scheduled business meetings during their term of office. Failing to attend 3 business meetings in a row is automatic grounds for removal from office, unless the offending officer requests a waiver and it is approved by a majority of the voting members who attend that third business meeting.

All officers are eligible to vote during their term of office.

An officer may delegate responsibilities of their office, and is urged to mentor an assistant or convene a committee to share the workload and get more members involved. However, it is the officer's responsibility to meet the obligations of the office.

Each outgoing officer is responsible for briefing their successor and turning over all materials as soon as possible, preferably within 2 weeks of stepping down. An outgoing officer with no successor shall brief and turn over materials to a coordinator.

All Officers are required to submit a report from their area of responsibility at every business meeting. If not attending the meeting, the report shall be submitted to the Coordinators beforehand.

## The **elected officers** are as follows:

Coordinators (2): Manage the administration of the organization.

Membership Officer: Manages memberships

Treasurer: Manages the finances

Recorder: Manages minutes and communications, except the newsletter

# The **appointed officers** are as follows:

Newsletter Editor: Prepares and distributes The Lunatic Fringe

Outreach/PR Officer: Manages publicity and outreach.

Orientation Officer: Responsible for Orientation

<u>Doorkeepe</u>r: Manages the door at programs

<u>Sergeant-at-Arms</u>: Provides security at the door for Exiles functions.

Web Site Manager: Maintains and manages the official Exiles website.

Volunteer Coordinator: Recruits and manages volunteers

Detailed duties are in the Policies.

### C. Election of Officers

Nominations for Coordinator, Membership Officer, Treasurer, and Recorder shall be made at the beginning of the February program and printed in the March newsletter. Additional nominations may be made at the beginning of the March program. Also at that time, candidates for any contested office may speak, for no longer than two minutes. Immediately following, all candidates running unopposed shall be declared elected by acclamation; any contested races will be decided by written ballot of all members present.

Ballots shall contain a place for write-in candidates for any position for which there is already at least one nominee. If there are no nominees for a position, that position remains empty until filled by the Business Group, as described below.

A simple majority of votes cast determines the winner.

Absentee ballots are to be provided to the membership no later than March 10. In order to be counted in the election, the ballot must be returned by mail by 5:00pm Pacific Time two days prior to the March program meeting or, if a paper ballot, brought to the March program meeting. Any member who attends the meeting may turn in their absentee ballot OR vote in person but not both.

# **D.** Appointment of Officers

The positions of Newsletter Editor, PR Officer, Orientation Officer, Doorkeeper, Sergeant-at-Arms, Volunteer Coordinator and Web Site Manager shall be filled by appointment made by the elected officers and voting members at the April business meeting. An appointment requires a majority vote of voting members present. Such vote shall be by written ballot.

#### E. Vacancies

A vacancy in any office, caused by any reason, shall be filled by appointment of any member who meets the qualifications for election or appointment. Vacancies are filled in the same manner as appointment of officers.

### F. Removal From Office

An officer may be removed from office for the same causes and with the same procedure as a membership may be revoked. See Article II Section D. If a member is removed from office for any of these reasons, their membership is also revoked.

If an officer fails to perform their required duties they may be removed from office by a vote of the Steering Committee. A quorum of two thirds of the remaining Steering Committee must be present for a valid vote to occur, and two thirds of them must vote to remove the officer. Note that removal from office in this manner does not affect the membership status of the officer.

# IV. Reciprocity and Affiliation

## A. Reciprocity

The Exiles may enter into agreements with other organizations through which we recognize each other's members and treat them as our own at our functions. These other organizations must require a safety workshop and issue membership cards.

## **B.** Benefits of Reciprocity

Anyone who meets the membership requirements for the Exiles and who is a member of a reciprocal group may attend Exiles events other than business meetings at the member rate. They shall sign the Waiver and Liability Release.

### C. Affiliation

The Exiles, as participants in the world-wide BDSM community, shall be an affiliate member of such national and international organizations as the business group deems appropriate.

# V. Participation

Members are welcomed and encouraged to participate in business meetings, committees, and all aspects of operating the organization.

# VI. Emblems

The name and logo of The Exiles are registered property of the organization. They may not be used in any way other than as officially sanctioned by the organization, either by being offered for sale by the organization or after written approval by the business group.

# VII. Dissolution

### A. Deciding for Dissolution

The Exiles shall cease doing business upon completion of the following:

- A quorum of two thirds of the Steering Committee must be present for a valid vote to occur, and two thirds of them must vote to bring the question to the membership.
- Notice shall be printed in the next issue of The Lunatic Fringe that the question will be voted on at the next upcoming program.

• A majority of members in attendance at that program must vote in favor of dissolution.

## **B.** Dissolution of Assets

After all outstanding bills have been paid and all costs involved in meeting the legal requirements of closure have been met, any remaining funds will be equally distributed to current members or donated to other organizations by vote of the business group.

# **VIII. Amending These Articles**

Any member may submit in writing at a business meeting, an amendment to these Articles of Association. If, after discussion, a majority of voting-eligible members who vote agree, it shall be printed in the next issue of The Lunatic Fringe, along with notice that the amendment will be discussed and voted on at that month's program. The amendment will be adopted if it receives yes votes from two thirds of the members attending the program or sending in absentee ballots.

# **POLICIES**

1. Contact Information for the Exiles is as follows:

Mail: P.O. Box 14338, San Francisco, CA 94114

• Phone: 415-938-SFSM (7376)

2. Dues are as follows:

<u>Type</u>	<b>Yearly</b>	Prorated bi-monthly
Basic	\$36	\$6
Household	\$48*	\$7
Supporting	\$25	\$4
(per person, in addition to either the		
Basic or Household rate)		
Hardship (self-defined)	\$15	\$2.50
Associate	\$18	\$3

<sup>\*</sup>The Household rate includes two people. Each additional person pays \$12 for the year, prorated bi-monthly by \$2.

- 3. No cameras or recording devices of any kind shall be permitted at any Exiles function without prior written permission from the Business group, except those held in a place where access is not under the group's control and open to the public. An exception may be made to allow the audio tape recording of business meetings for ease of transcription. A vote to approve such may be taken on the motion of the Recorder.
- 4. The Treasurer is authorized to pay expenses approved at business meetings.
- 5. If time-sensitive decisions arise outside of the normal business-meeting schedule, an online vote can be called, following these steps:
  - a. Anyone eligible to vote as of the end of the last business meeting is eligible to vote online.
  - b. The same quorum rules apply: the minimum number of votes must be received by the deadline for the vote to count. If not, the proposal can be abandoned, or reintroduced with a new deadline.
  - c. The requestor will publish a proposal to the business group email list, and request a second.
  - d. If no second is received, the proposal is dead (but can be re-introduced). If a second is received, the requestor calls for a vote.
  - e. The requestor must say if the issue is urgent or not. If urgent, they publish a time-and-day deadline of at least 2 full days. If not urgent (but needs to be dealt with before the business meeting), they publish a time-and-day deadline of at least 5 full days.
  - f. The requestor sends a text message to all eligible voting members, stating that there is an online vote that needs their attention, including the deadline.
  - g. The requestor sends an email with the result of the voting once the deadline has been reached.
- 6. The Treasurer will put together a yearly budget based on past income and expenditures and projected future income/expense. This budget will be presented to the business group prior to the end of each fiscal year, and voted upon for approval at or before the final business meeting of the fiscal year. If adjustments are requested or required, they must be brought before the business group and approved by a majority vote. Adjustments include request for payment of amounts above the budgeted sum for an individual category.
- 7. Door fee for programs shall be \$10.00. Members shall pay \$5.00 upon presentation of their membership card. Free admittance will be extended to the evening's presenter(s) and up to two assistants.
- 8. A copy of the Articles and Policies will be made available to all prospective members at orientation. Since all changes will be announced in The Lunatic Fringe, it is the responsibility of each member to be aware of and observe them.

- 9. The Lunatic Fringe is the official newsletter of The Exiles. Except for bylined articles, fiction, signed letters, calendar items, attributed items and ads, all information is presented as policy. No last names (unless program presenters include their own in the program description they supply), home addresses or personal telephone numbers shall be printed.
- 10. Members and Associates may run free personal or business ads (no larger than 2 x 1 ½), not more than one per month. Business ads must be for the member's own business. Display/classified ads are accepted, and costs per issue are as follows:
  - \$10 for business card size, which is 2x3
  - \$20 for 4x3
  - \$30 for 1/4 page, which is about 3 1/8 x 5.
  - \$40 for 4x6
  - \$60 for 1/2 page, which is about 7 1/4 x 5
- 11. Proposals for any Exiles business, including sponsorship, donations, events, reciprocal affiliations proposals, or any other business must be presented in writing to the Business group, and will be discussed at the next business meeting.
- 12. A minimum of 5 voting members is required for any vote in the business group (at a meeting or online) in order to designate the vote as valid.
- 13. Sign language interpreters for the deaf and hard-of-hearing are provided at programs. It is acceptable to request advance notice for these services.
- 14. Volunteer Compensation: Officers, program volunteers, and those who take on specific tasks at the business meetings will be compensated in the following manner:
  - Elected Officers will receive free membership, free entry into programs, up to \$100 assistance for travel expenses and/or paid registration for one leather conference that includes educational content per term.
  - Appointed officers will receive free membership, free entry into programs, and a free t-shirt, tank top or pin (one time only).
  - General volunteers will receive a pass for one free program entry each time they do work for the Exiles (subject to Volunteer Coordinator's discretion).
  - Anyone providing interpretation services will be given free membership in the organization, and free water at programs.
  - Presenters may choose one of the following:
    - o A one-time, quarter-page ad space in The Lunatic Fringe
    - An Exiles t-shirt and pin
    - A subscription to The Lunatic Fringe for the remainder of the membership period (all memberships expire in June).
- 15. Policies may be changed over two business meetings: an eligible member moves to change and an eligible member seconds it; the proposed change appears in the minutes printed in The Lunatic Fringe. At the following meeting it is discussed, and shall pass if a majority of eligible voters vote yes.
- 16. If a check submitted by a member for payment of dues is returned by the bank, that member will be in good standing only if they pay the amount due as well as any fees charged The Exiles by the bank with regard to the returned check within 60 days.
- 17. Renewal notices and forms will be included in the July and August issues of the Lunatic Fringe. A member who does not renew their membership by June 30 is granted a "grace period" during which they may continue to receive the July and August issues of The Lunatic Fringe. If they attend the July program they may still get in at the member rate, but they must renew by the August program, at the non-prorated rate, in order to get in at the member rate.
- 18. The Steering Committee will meet at least once every calendar year. Additional meetings may be called by the coordinators as needed.

19. Specific duties of the elected officers are as follows:

## Coordinators (2):

- Manage the administration of the organization.
- Facilitate the business meetings, including preparing the agenda and obtaining reports from all officers.
- Organize monthly programs, including scheduling and communicating with presenters. Provide Newsletter Editor, PR Officer, and Web Site Manager with details on upcoming programs as soon as possible, to facilitate publicity and to provide notice if any male(s) will be presenting.
- May divide their duties between them as they wish.
- Are elected to a two-year term.

# Membership Officer:

- Manages the official means of communication to the membership (excepting The Lunatic Fringe). This includes maintaining any email lists run by the club for members.
- Maintains records of attendance at orientations in order to validate membership eligibility.
- Maintains identity information provided to The Exiles by members and prospective members and is responsible
  for its confidentiality. Provides such information to other officers as required for the performance of their
  duties
- Provides membership cards and renewal notices.

#### Treasurer:

- Collects, disburses, and accounts for all funds belonging to, owed to, or owed by The Exiles.
- Maintains and reconciles The Exiles' bank accounts.
- Ensures that the accounts shall have several members authorized to sign.
- Ensures that even if not supported by the bank, checks for non-routine expenses over \$200are signed by two signers.
- Processes all financial transactions (expenses and deposits, statement reconciliations) within one month of receipt, or by the due date, whichever is sooner.
- Reimburses authorized expenditures incurred by members on The Exiles' behalf, only upon presentation of receipts for same.
- Completes all licensing, tax, and other legal requirements in a timely manner.
- Insures that funds are kept available to pay foreseeable upcoming expenses, such as room rent for programs, newsletter printing and mailing, voice mail service, supplies, etc.
- Provides a financial report at each business meeting, including the total balance in all accounts and any other
  details about the finances of The Exiles requested and/or needed to facilitate financial decision-making at the
  meeting.
- Provides financial information about The Exiles to the membership when requested.
- Leads the budget committee, which is responsible for proposing and having accepted a budget for each fiscal year. This should be completed by end of the previous fiscal year.
- Prepares a year-end report, presented at the first business meeting of the following fiscal year and printed in the next Lunatic Fringe published after that meeting.

#### Recorder:

- Takes minutes of business meetings, which will include date and time, reports presented, motions made and their disposition, and attendance. These minutes are to be presented to the business group within a week of the meeting, after which corrections may be offered. Once approved, the minutes are then kept on file permanently by the Recorder.
- Prepares a summary of the minutes to be printed in the following month's Lunatic Fringe.
- Maintains an inventory of all property purchased by or donated to The Exiles. All members who have use or custody of such property are to keep the Recorder informed.
- Keeps records of The Exiles activities, including a master file of business meeting minutes and officers' reports, newsletters, posters, palm cards, flyers and other publications, and all other written artifacts of the group that do not contain confidential information.

18. The **appointed officers** and their job descriptions are as follows:

### Newsletter Editor:

- Prepares a monthly edition of The Lunatic Fringe and mails it to all members on or before the first day of each month.
- Collects material for the newsletter: from officers in the form of articles, reports, program announcements, and
  minutes; from members in the form of articles, or letters to The Exiles or to The Lunatic Fringe; a report on the
  previous month's program; calendar listings, news and announcements of interest excerpted from mail sent to
  The Exiles; classified, personal and display ads; short fiction or poetry submitted by members shall be printed
  as space allows.

## Outreach/PR Officer

- Arranges visibility activities such as e-blasts, social media postings, listserve postings, press releases, and
  calendar listings for Exiles events, information booths at appropriate public events and newsletter exchange
  with similar groups.
- Arranges advertising, such as display ads, inserts, flyers, and palm cards, for conferences and other events of
  interest to the Exiles.
- Assists the Orientation Officer by handling notice of scheduled orientations.

### Orientation Officer:

- Conducts the Orientation required before anyone may become a member.
- Manages materials and handouts supplied to orientation attendees and new members.
- Determines if an organization offers an Orientation that is equivalent in breadth and depth to the Exiles Orientation, for the purpose of determining eligibility for reciprocity.

### Doorkeeper:

- Opens the space before programs begin.
- Checks the membership card of each member and collects the member door fee.
- Verifies the age, obtains the legal signature on the Waiver and Liability Release, and collects the door fee from
  each non-member.
- Completes the Door Report and gives it, along with the money collected, to the Treasurer or their designee.

### Sergeant-at-Arms:

- Provides security at the door for Exiles functions.
- Controls and, if necessary, closes admission when the presenter begins the program and again after any intermission.

### Web Site Manager

- Maintains and manages the official Exiles website.
- Updates website content in a timely manner.
- Maintains a record of all website-related accounts and their passwords, and keeps this information available to the Coordinators.

## Volunteer Coordinator

- Recruits interested volunteers for Exiles program and outside events where the Exiles have a presence, such as conferences and street fairs.
- Maintains database of volunteers and helps to fill needed positions as determined by the business group.
- Assists co-coordinators in planning the annual Volunteer Appreciation Party.
- 19. Contestant Sponsorship: The Exiles may choose to sponsor a contestant for a leather- or BDSM-related title as follows:
  - The stated mission/goal of the contest/title must be educational in nature. (For example, International Ms. Leather "will act as a mentor, a role model and a spokesperson".) This is important because the title must foster our mission as an educational organization in order to not jeopardize our nonprofit status.
  - The requestor must have been a member of the Exiles for at least a year.

- The requestor must have performed ongoing volunteer activities for the Exiles during the past year. Being an Exiles officer in good standing meets this requirement. Otherwise, the requestor must have volunteered at least 6 times for the Exiles, including attending at least one business meeting (each business meeting attendance counts as a volunteer activity), and volunteering for at least one program meeting or other Exiles event such as a booth shift at Pride or Folsom.
- The requestor must have a public demeanor and attitude that would represent the Exiles in a positive light.
- Once granted sponsorship, the contestant must do the following:
  - Wear Exiles-branded items at all leather events attended between the granting of the sponsorship and the contest.
  - o Wear Exiles-branded items regularly during contest-related events.
  - Be identified as being sponsored by The Exiles whenever a bio related to the title is published.
  - O Sponsor at least one fundraising event at which the Exiles is at least a 50% beneficiary during the time between the granting of sponsorship and the contest.
  - If the contestant wins the title, wear Exiles-branded items (at least a pin) at any events representing the title.
  - If the contestant does not compete in the contest, they must return to the Exiles any contest fees they
    have been reimbursed.
- Once granted sponsorship, the contestant may, from the time of sponsorship up to the contest, solicit donations from third parties under the Exiles nonprofit status. Donors must be required to sign a form containing (at least) the following:
  - o The donation is to the Exiles.
  - The donation is requested to benefit the contestant's title run or title-related activities.
  - The donation will not be used for any personal use, but only in support of the Exiles.
- The Exiles may sponsor multiple contestants for a contest, provided they meet the above requirements and follow the process outlined below.
- Once sponsorship is granted, the Exiles commit to the following:
  - o Including an Ad in each Fringe following the sponsorship grant up to the contest, advertising the sponsorship of all contestants for that contest.
  - Placing an Ad in the program book for the contest, mentioning sponsorship of all sponsored contestants. Generally we include the names of all contestants who are Exiles members in such Ads; sponsored contestants will get a separate mention.
  - Reimbursing the contest entrance fee up to a total of \$50.
- The Exiles does not commit to providing any additional funds to the contestant, although, as for all requests, the contestant may submit a regular proposal to the Exiles requesting additional funds for additional purposes.
- This is the process for requesting sponsorship:
  - The contestant must submit a request in writing which includes a statement about why they want Exiles sponsorship, a summary of their Exiles volunteer work, and an outline of their proposed fundraiser. This must be provided to the Exiles business group (exilesbiz@theexilessf.net) at least one week prior to a business meeting, with the request to be added to the business meeting agenda.
  - The contestant must attend the business meeting and present their proposal in under 5 minutes. After this they may be asked questions by the business group. If there are questions that cannot be answered at the business meeting, the group can choose to table the proposal until the next meeting in order to get answers.
  - After the presentation and Q&A, the contestant must leave the business meeting so the group can discuss the proposal. The group will then vote on the sponsorship, following the standard business group voting procedures. As with all decisions made by the business group, the decision will be published in the minutes of the meeting.
- 20. The Exiles offers patches for the club according to the following rules:

## **Patch Earning Requirements**

To become an Exiles patch holder, prospective patch holders must:

- Be an Exiles member in good standing for at least one year.
- Positively represent the Exiles in word and deed, and support the club at events

- Volunteer at a minimum of two Exiles events in a one year period. One of these can be an educational program, but one must be a special event or project
- Pay a one-time initiation fee

To earn a patch, associate members must:

- Be an Exiles associate member in good standing for at least one year
- Positively represent the Exiles in word and deed, and support the club at events
- Special events or projects to support the club would be appreciated, but are not required
- Pay a one-time initiation fee

## **Ongoing Patch Holder Requirements**

For patch holders to maintain their patches they must:

- Be an Exiles member in good standing
- Positively represent the Exiles in word and deed, and support the club at events
- Volunteer at a minimum of one Exiles event in a one year period

Associate members may participate in all club activities and shall be entitled to continue to wear the Exiles patch year over year, subject to all Exiles membership requirements and code of conduct rules. Associate members shall not be entitled to hold office nor to vote.

Exiles members who complete the requirements for patch holding will be issued a back patch from the Exiles to be worn, centered, on the back of the patch holder's vest, jacket, or other article of clothing, above the waist. No other large patches may be worn on the back of that article of clothing without the written approval of the Exiles. If the patch is damaged or lost, the member must pay its full replacement cost.

#### Administration

Officers will vote on prospective patch holders at the next business meeting after the requirements to hold a patch are met, and patches will be awarded at the following program.

The club may revoke the patch should any of the requirements for holding it not be met. Patches are the property of the Exiles and must be removed and returned should membership lapse, be revoked, or terminated. The Sergeant-At-Arms with the support of the business group shall perform due diligence to recover said patches.

The Membership Officer, Sergeant-at-Arms, or other officer(s) as designed by the business group, will be responsible for the administration of patch holder activities, tracking of the requirements, and issuance of patches. Exiles branded items and other membership regalia shall be retained in the club archive or such other archive as the Exiles may deem appropriate.